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Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“Commission™), by its undersigned

attorneys, alleges as follows:
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. Thisis an action under Sections 5(a) and 13(b) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act (“FTC Act”), 15U.S.C. §§ 45(a) and 53(b), to secure permanent
injunctive relief and other equitable relief, including rescission, reformation, redress
and disgorgement, against defendants for engaging in unfair or deceptive acts or
practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, as amended, 15U.S.C. § 45(a),
and acts or practices in violation of the Truth in Lending Act’s (“TILA”) implementing
Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. § 226, as amended.

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 15
U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 53(b), 1607(c), and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331,1337(a) and 1345.

3. Venue is proper in the United States District Court for the Central District of
California under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and (c), and 15U.S.C. § 53(b).

PARTIES

4. Plaintiff, the Commission, is an independentagency of the United States
Government created and given statutory authority and responsibility by the FTC Act, as
amended, 15U.S.C. §§ 41-58. The Commission is charged with enforcing Section 5(a)
of the FTC Act, 15U.S.C. § 45(a), which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices
in or affecting commerce, and Section 108(c) of the TILA, 15U.S.C. § 1607(c). The
Commission is authorized by Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15U.S.C. § 53(b), to
initiate federal district court proceedings to enjoin violations of the FTC Act and to
secure such equitable relief as may be appropriate in each case including, but not
limited to, redress and disgorgement.

5. First Alliance Mortgage Company is a California corporation with its
principal place of business at 17305 VVon Karman Avenue in Irvine, California
(“FAMCO”). FAMCO transacts business in this District.
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6. First Alliance Corporation (“FACQ”)is a publicly traded Delaware
corporation with its principal place of business at 17305 Von Karman Avenue in Irvine,
California. FACO has a one hundred percent ownership interestin FAMCO. FACO
transacts business in this District.

7. InJuly of 1997, FAMCO created a wholly-owned subsidiary Minnesota
corporation of the same name, First Alliance Mortgage Company (“FAMCO-MN”).
FAMCO-MN has its principal place of business at 7900 Xerxes Avenue in
Bloomington, Minnesota. FAMCO-MN transacts business in this District.

8. The foregoing defendant corporations operate together as part of a common
enterprise (hereinafter, “First Alliance”).

9. Brian Chisick (“Chisick™) has been chairman of the board of directors and
chief executive officer of FACO and its subsidiaries since February 2000. From June
1996 to February 2000, Chisick served as chairman, chief executive officer and
president of FACO and its subsidiaries. From 1971 to June 1996, he served as chairman
of the board of directors, chief executive officer and president of FAMCO.
Individually or in concert with others, he directs, controls, formulates or participatesin
the acts and practices set forth herein. He resides, transacts or has transacted business
in this district.

10. Relief defendant Sarah Chisick is the spouse of defendant Brian Chisick.
Individually or jointly with her spouse Brian Chisick, she has received funds and other
property, that were derived unlawfully from payments by consumers as a consequence
of the acts and practices complained of herein and she does not have a legitimate claim
to those funds.

11. On March 23,2000, FAMCO, FACO and FAMCO-MN each filed a
voluntary petition for Chapter 11 bankruptcy in the United States Bankruptcy Court,
Central District of California, Case Nos. SA 00-12370-LR, SA 00-12371-LR and SA
D0-12372-LR, respectively.
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12. First Alliance has disseminated advertisements to the public that promote
consumer credit transactions, as the terms “advertisement” and “consumer credit,” are
defined in Section 226.2 of RegulationZ, 12 C.F.R. § 226.2, as amended.

13. First Alliance is a “creditor” offering and extending “closed-end credit,” as
those terms are defined in Section 226.2 of Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. § 226.2, as
amended, and therefore is required to comply with applicable provisions in Regulation
Z.

FIRST ALLIANCE’S BUSINESS PRACTICES

14. First Alliance advertises, offers, extends and sells home equity loans. These
loans are primarily secured by first mortgages on consumers’ homes.

15. First Alliance styles itself a niche lender catering to the “subprime” loan
market. Its customers include homeowners with poor or insufficient credit histories,
records, or ratings who might experience difficulty securing conventional home equity
financing.

16. First Alliance charges consumers substantial prepaid finance charges, such
as loan origination fees, underwriting fees, loan processing fees and other fees. These
charges typically total between ten and twenty-five percent of the amount financed.

17. First Alliance solicits prospective customers for its products and services
through telemarketing and direct mail advertising. As part of its marketing campaign,
First Alliance targets financially vulnerable consumers including elderly persons and
individuals who have significantequity in their homes. In its solicitations, First
Alliance states that the consumer has been “pre-qualified to receive up to” some amount
of money, such as $82,500. See Exhibits 1 through 3. These solicitations tout the
benefits of obtaining a First Alliance loan, such as “NO APPLICATION FEES,” “NO
UP-FRONT APPRAISAL FEES,” “LOW RATES” and “LOW PAYMENTS.” See
Exhibits 1 through 3. Other solicitations state that one of the benefits ofa First
Alliance loan is that there are “NO OUT-OF-POCKET EXPENSES.” See Exhibits 1
and 3. A certain solicitation offers consumers benefits relative to their current loans,

4-
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such as “Lower Interest Rates,” “Lower Monthly Payments” and “Tax Savings
Benefits.” See Exhibit2. One solicitation states that consumers will “SAVE
HUNDREDS OF DOLLARS” and “SAVE $500” by refinancing their debt with First
Alliance. See Exhibit 3.

Sales Presentation

18. First Alliance requires its loan officers to attend an intensive training course
where they are taught to memorize and deliver First Alliance’s lengthy sales
presentation, known as “the Track.” The Track presentation consists of thirteen steps
and usually takes more than two hours to present to consumers.

19. The Track presentation contains false or misleading statements that cause
consumers to be deceived about the material terms of the loan, and misleads consumers
about the meaning of the material information used in the TILA disclosure as required
by Section 128 of the TILA, 15U.S.C § 1638, and Section 226.18 of RegulationZ, 12
C.F.R. § 226.18, (“TILA disclosure statement”). For example, one of the material
disclosures that is deceptively used by First Alliance is the “amount financed” for the
loan. First Alliance misrepresentsthat the amount financed, appearing on the TILA
disclosure statement, is the total amount of money that consumers borrow. In fact, the
total amount that consumers borrow, and upon which interest accrues, is the amount
financed plus the substantial prepaid finance charges imposed by First Alliance.

20. First Alliance also misleads consumers about costs and fees, such as the
existence and amount of loan origination fees. Such misrepresentations obscure the
existence of these costs and fees and misrepresent the true amount of debt consumers
will incur.

21. In addition, First Alliance loan officersare trained to, and do, mislead
consumers by stating or implying that the total cost of credit for the loan is the interest
rate displayed on the loan note and mortgage and not the “annual percentage rate”
(“APR”) displayed on the TILA disclosure statement. In fact, the APR, and not the
Interest rate on the loan, measures the total cost of credit, and for this reason is an

-5-
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important indicator to consumers that the lender is including substantial prepaid
charges.
Adjustable Rate Mortgage Loans

22. The majority of First Alliance’s borrowers obtain an adjustable rate
mortgage (“ARM”) based on a six-month U.S. dollar “LIBOR” index, which is the
acronym for the London InterBank Offered Rate.

23. The terms of the ARM loans include short-term front-end “teaser” interest
rates. The teaser interest rate only applies for the first six months of the loan (the
“teaser period”). The teaser rate is then phased out through several rate increases, until
the rate reaches the “fully indexed rate” - the LIBOR index rate plus a fixed number of
percentage points (the “margin”).

24. First Alliance misrepresents how the interest rates on its ARM loans adjust
over time, falsely representing that adjustments in the interest rates are based on
changes in the LIBOR index. In fact, the interest rate on these loans can, and does,
Increase as much as one percentage point at every six month adjustment period until the
“artificial discount” (the difference between the teaser interest rate and the LIBOR
index plus the margin) disappears. This results in higher interest rates and higher
monthly payments for consumers.

25. The acts and practices of First Alliance alleged in this Complaint have been
in or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15
U.S.C. $44.

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSIONACT VIOLATIONS
Count I: Failure to Substantiate Cost Savings

26. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all the foregoing paragraphs.

27. In the course and conduct of offering and extending credit, and in credit
advertisements, including but not necessarily limited to Exhibit 3, First Alliance has
-epresented, expressly or by implication, that consumers will save money when
:onsol idating debts. First Alliance did not possess and rely upon a reasonable basis

-6-
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that substantiatesthe representation at the time it was made.

28. First Alliance’s practices constitute deceptive acts or practices in or affecting
commerce in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15U.S.C.
§ 45(a).

Count 11: Misrepresentation of the Terms of the ARM Loans

29. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all the foregoing paragraphs.

30. In the course and conduct of offering and extending credit, First Alliance has
represented, expressly or by implication, that adjustments in the interest rate on its
ARM loans are based entirely on changes in the LIBOR index and that, over the course
of the loan, the interest rate can be lower than the initial teaser rate.

31. Intruth and in fact, adjustments in the interest rate on First Alliance’s ARM
loans are not based entirely on changes in the LIBOR index, and over the course of the
loan the interest rate cannot be lower than the initial teaser rate. The initial teaser
interest rate automatically increases as much as one percentage point every six months
until the artificial discount disappears, and the lowest the interest rate can be is the
Initial teaser interest rate, regardless of any decrease in the LIBOR index. Therefore,
First Alliance’s representation as alleged in paragraph 30, was, and is, false or
misleading.

32. First Alliance’s practices constitute deceptive acts or practices in or affecting
commerce in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15U.S.C.
§ 45(a).

Count 111: Misrepresentation of the Monthly Payments

33. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all the foregoing paragraphs.

34. In the course and conduct of offering and extending credit, First Alliance has
‘epresented, expressly or by implication, that the initial monthly payment on its ARM
loans will not increase unless the LIBOR index increases.

35. In truth and in fact, the initial monthly payment on First Alliance’s ARM
loans will increase even if the LIBOR index does not. The initial monthly payment will

-7-
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increase at every six-month adjustmentperiod until the artificial discount disappears,
regardless of whether the LIBOR index increases. Therefore, First Alliance’s
representation as alleged in paragraph 34, was, and is, false or misleading.

36. First Alliance’s practices constitute deceptive acts or practices in or affecting
commerce in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15U.S.C.
§ 45(a).

Count IV: Misrepresentationof Loan Origination Fees

37. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all the foregoing paragraphs.

38. In the course and conduct of offering and extending credit, First Alliance has
represented, expressly or by implication, that it does not impose loan origination fees.

39. Intruth and in fact, First Alliance imposes loan origination fees on the vast
majority, if not all, of its loans. Therefore, First Alliance’s representation as alleged in
paragraph 38, was, and is, false or misleading.

40. First Alliance’s practices constitute deceptive acts or practices in or affecting
commerce in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15U.S.C.
§ 45(a).

Count V: Misrepresentationof the Amount Borrowed

41. Plaintiff incorporatesby reference all the foregoing paragraphs.

42. In the course and conduct of offering and extending credit, First Alliance has
represented, expressly or by implication, that the total amount that consumers borrow
on its loans, and upon which interest accrues, is the amount financed, which appears on
the TILA disclosure statement.

43. In truth and in fact, the total amount that consumers borrow on its loans, and
apon wWhich interest accrues, is not only the amount financed but includes substantial
additional fees and charges imposed by First Alliance, upon which interest will accrue.
Therefore, First Alliance’s representation as alleged in paragraph 42, was, and is, false

»r misleading.
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44. First Alliance’s practices constitute deceptive acts or practices in or affecting
commerce in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15U.S.C.
§ 45(a).

Count VI: Misrepresentation of the Prepaid Finance Charges

45. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all the foregoing paragraphs.

46. In the course and conduct of offering and extending credit, First Alliance has
represented, expressly or by implication, that its prepaid finance charges, such as the
loan origination fees, are part of the interest payments on the loan.

47. In truth and in fact, the prepaid finance charges imposed by First Alliance
are not part of the interest payments on the loan. These charges are added to the
amount financed and are part of the loan principal, or the total amount of money
borrowed, and interest accrues on these charges. Therefore, First Alliance’s
representation as alleged in paragraph 46, was, and is, false or misleading.

48. First Alliance’s practices constitute deceptive acts or practices in or affecting
commerce in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15U.S.C.
§ 45(a).

REGULATION Z VIOLATIONS
Count VII

49. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all the foregoing paragraphs.

50. In the course and conduct of offering and extending credit, First Alliance has
failed to provide borrowers who have loans
(a) with a term greater than one year, (b) secured by the borrowers’ principal dwelling,
and (c) for which the APR may increase after consummation, with the booklet titled
Consumer Handbook on Adjustable Rate Mortgages or a suitable substitute. First
Alliance has, therefore, violated the requirements of TILA’s implementing Regulation

Z, 12C.F.R. § 226.19(b)(1).
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CONSUMER INJURY

51. Consumers have suffered, and will continue to suffer, substantial injury as a
result of First Alliance’s violations of § 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15U.S.C. § 45(a), and
TILA’s implementing Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. § 226, as set forth above.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff requests that this Court, as authorized in § 13(b) of the
FTC Act, 15U.S.C. § 53(b), Section 108(c) of the TILA, 15U.S.C. § 1607(c), and
pursuant to its own equitable powers:

1. Enterjudgment against the defendants and in favor of plaintiff for each
violation charged in the Complaint;

2. Permanently enjoin and restrain defendants from violating § 5(a) of the FTC
Act in connection with offering and extending credit and any provision of the TILA and
Regulation Z;

3. Find the defendantsjointly and severally liable for redress to all borrowers
who were injured as a result of defendants’ violations of § 5(a) of the FTC Act and
Regulation Z;

4. Award such relief as the Court deems necessary to prevent unjust enrichment
and to redress borrower injury resulting from the defendants’ violations of § 5(a) of the
FTC Act and Regulation Z including, but not limited to, rescission of contracts, the
refund of monies paid, and disgorgement of ill-gotten gains; and

5. Award such relief against relief defendant Sarah Chisick that the Court deems
necessary to protect and return funds and other property, to which Sarah Chisick has no
legitimate claim, that were derived from Defendants’ violations of § 5(a) of the FTC
Act in connection with offering and extending credit and any provision of the TILA and
Regulation Z, including an order to disgorge all ill-gotten gains or proceeds that she has
received as a result of the acts and practices complained of herein, and an order
Imposing a constructive trust upon such gains or proceeds; and

-10-
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6. Award plaintiff its costs of bringing this action, as well as such other
additional equitable relief as the Court may determine to be just and proper.

Dated: November 26,2001

Respectfully Submitted,

WILLIAM E. KOVACIC
General Counsel

@: A A/
AMNE M. McCORMICK
JOHN A. KREBS

JULIE K. BROF
JEANNE-MARIE S. RAYMOND
Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Room 442

Washington, DC 20580

— e

BARBARA
Local Counsel
Cal. Bar No. 186907
Federal Trade Commission
10877 Wilshire Blvd., Ste. 700

Los Anielesl CA 90024

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
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FROM: ] Tt ey, :
FIRST ALLIANCE MORTGAGE : - - TELEPHONE REPLY

. 7900 XERXES AVE. SO. o - REQUESTED
BI.OO!IIMON MN 55431 ~ 1-800-695~6900"

 SAINT PAUL, MN. 55110-4S51
ll'l"‘llllllIl'lll'll'llIllIl'lll'l‘.l'l.l.llllllllllll_.l.ll K}

 DEAR

GOOD NEWS! FIRST ALLIANCE IS PLEASED TO NOTIFY YOU THAT
YOU BAVE BEEN PRE-QUALIFIED FOR UR TO $82.300.

'IE_YOU'RE PAYING HIGH INTEREST ON CREDIT CARDS, CHARGE
ACCOUNTS OR FINANCE COMPANY LOANS, YOU'RE PAYING TOO MOCH!
HERE ARE THE BENEFITS YOU'LL RECEIVE WITH A FIRST
ALLIANCE HOME EQUITY LOAN: ‘

- NO APPLICATION FEES LOW PAYMENTS

- NO UP-FRONT APPRAISAL - LOW RATES
- NO ouT-OF-POCKET EXPENSES -
-~ NO CREDIT OR INCOME HASSLES = 72-HOUR APPROVAL
- 25 yEARS EXPERIENCE

- NO PAYMENTS FOR UP TO 60 DAYS

PLUS, YOU CAN USE THE MONEY FOR ANY PURPOSE; PAY OFF BILLS.,
DO _HOME IMPROVEMENTS OR JUST GET EXTRA CASH.

EVEN IF YOU'RE SELE EMPLOYED, RETIRED OR HAVE HAD CREDIL
TROUBLE, IT'S NO PROBLEM. YOU CAN GET THE. MONEY YOU NEED
AND HAVE A LOW MONTHLY PAYMENT YOU CAN AFFORD. . _

PLEASE, CALL NOW AND SIMPLY TELL US HOW MUCH MONEY YOU

NEED. WE'LL GLADLY ANSWER YOQUR OQUESTIONS.
~800-695— . MON THRU FRI SAM-8FPM,
SAT 9AM-3PM. .-

PAM PETERSON
FIRST ALLIANCE MORTGAGE

BLInLIole

BURIECT TO VERIFIED DGUETY AND DEOOME.

e ——————————— ————

Exhibit 1
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" This e not & Check ) .t

10 1998
Pay the Sum of  EIGHTY THREE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED DOLLARS  $83,700.00 -

Vi

TIRTER R R TR T IR W

Roseville, MN 55113-2401

k23,5099 2eds5ss

Wmmmmmwmﬂmm
Here are the benefits you'll receive with a First Alliance

mmmmm
« Lower inferest Rates * No Credit Hassles
» Lowsr Monthly Payments * Mo
« Tax Saving Benafits
/ * T2 Hour Loan Approval + No Up-Fron Fees
ol

Ywmmmmwwmmmmmmorm
et axto cash, /
;erwmwmamm.mmmmmmm

alow monthly payment vou can afford.

,mummmummmmmm

EBLCCAMNSS ' Reference i SBLCCAQO2TIS0
BUSIECT TO VERIFIED EQINTY AND (NOOME, Firat Aliancs Morigege Compeny s Sommesd is Axtzons, Calliomia, Oatesade, Oonneciicet, Fiwide,

- Guongle, Mgk, Marytand, Massschusatls, Minsusols, How Jervy, Now Visk, Oho, Ovegem, Penmyivanis, Uik, Vingiola eud Woskiagion. i Astssns,

sinie Sosmes SXIEEAT. In Callomix, Loans will be mude pussssnt te & Calsmis Deparimentof Corpemtions Coltisrnin aanes Lander Licwee.

In Guorgls, Twe Concoures Pednmy, Atinsis, GA 20320. Goonpls fiseidentil Morigage Lioenses. in Masonciseiis, siute fievase HLORM. bn Now Q
Yark & L500mend Maigage Gebur. Now Yk Sinte Sonting Oupactmant. i Cragen, insier Slate Roguistion. in Mincls, delng dusingss ne Fint o
Aionce Credit Compesalion. insls Rosidentiel Mrrigage Licenese.

Exhibit 2
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Exhibit 3

'ELEGRAM

DISPATCH
9/ 0279 .

ms:uﬁkﬂmﬁnﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ NATICK, MA 01760-3324

s Warnsndllsdillstacslislhadddabsslltsndllliod
vy o

H FIRST ALLIANCE MORTGAGE co.

reasTRY 15975500 20 WILLIAM sT.
NUMBER | WELLESLEY, MA 02181

I .
' .
' 1 l [

hIMPORTANT E'INANCIAL MESSAGE

FIRST ALLIANCE MORTGAGE IS‘PLEAéﬁD TO NOTIFY YoOu
THAT YOU HAVE BEEN PRE-~QUALIFIED FOR UP TO $82,500

J:_QR_ANY_EIRE_SE

IF YOU"NEED TO PAY OFF BlLLS DO HOME IMPROVEMENTS

OR JUST: NEED EXTRA CASE "WE.'CAN. SAVE YOQU BOIE TIME
M WITH OUR NEW "72-—HOUR" HOME EQUITY LOAN.

- SAVE $500 W '« 72-HOUR "APPROVAL

- NO APPLICATION FEES FAST FUNDING
- NO UP-FRONT APPRAISAL FEES LOW RATES

- NO OUT-OF-POCKET EXPENSES

i

LI

PLUS, WE CAN START YOUR LOAN RIGHT OVER THE PHONE,

APPROVE YOUR LOAN IN JUST ""72-HOURS'" AND PUT TEE
G OR SOONER

UPON REQUEST . RS ;,v', R
[ I'\' (RO L Y4 (RN B

DON'T DELAY .. CALL 'NOW. AND.& HMPLY 'TELL ‘US. HOW .MUCE.

- MONEY %evdmwmmmw-mmms_os- DOLLARS' "

mmwmmwmxﬁ

IN NATICK QALL_IQLL_EREE 1-800 695-6900.

MON THRU FRI 8AM-8PM, - SAT '9AM-3PM. ASK FOR
HOWARD COLEMAN MANAGER OF~ PREFERRED ACCOUNTS

WE WILL GLADLY ANSWER_,ANY.,QQESTI,ONS You ,MAYAE{AVE.

[ ]

. I Bal
SCBCCABB3: : . - Tracking # 09080677
*SUBJECT TO VERIFIED EQUITY AND INCONE. Fn-at Alllnm Yortgege Company iz Hcen:ed in Arizonn,
California, Calerado, Connecticut, Florida, Goorgln ‘(linois, laryland, humotts, Hi ta,
Now leraey, Naw Yark. GQhio, Oregon, Pannsylvania, Utah,.Virgina and Razhington. (n Arizona, state
licenzo BKISS17. [n California, lames will bo nade pursuant 1o a Calfforniz Dupsrtment of
Corporationz Califarnia Financa Londer Licenas. ln Ceorgia, Two Concourse Parkway, Atlanta, GA

LOW MONTHLY PAYMENTS
- NO PAYMENTS FOR UP. TO 60- DAYS - TAX SAVING BENEFITS

A 036788

30128, Georgia Residential Yartgage Li . In i huaetts, State License HL0824. In Now Tork a @
Licennad Nortgage Banker. Now York Itate Banking Department. In Oregon, under Siate Regulation. [n e
[linols, doing buminess as Firet Allianco Crediv’ Corporulmn llinois Reridential Nortgoge arrONfueY
Licenxea.

TELEFHONE REPLY REQUESTED [ CALL Now! 1-800-695-6900
N Y |




